June 5, 2024

City Council Chamber
1515 6™ Street, Coachella, California
(760) 398-3502 & www.coachella.org

AGENDA

OF A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE

CiTY OF COACHELLA
PLANNING COMMISSION

June 05, 2024
6:00 PM

In-Person Meeting
Location:

City Council Chamber
1515 6™ Street,
Coachella, CA

If you would like to attend the meeting via Zoom, here is the link:

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84544257915?pwd=VTdHWIitpYVdOUKINQWS8vZ1pqUmO0zQT
09

Or One tap mobile : +16694449171,,845442579154,,,,*380084#
Or Telephone:
US: +1 669 900 6833
Webinar ID: 845 4425 7915
Passcode: 380084

Spanish: El idioma espafiol esta disponible en Zoom seleccionado la opcion en la parte de
abajo de la pantalla

Public comments may be received either in person, via email, telephonically, or via Zoom with a limit
of 250 words, or three minutes:

o InReal Time:

If participating in real time via Zoom or phone, during the Public Comment Period, use the “raise hand”
function on your computer, or when using a phone, participants can raise their hand by pressing *9 on the

keypad.
o In Writing:

Written comments may be submitted to the City Council electronically via email
to cityclerk@coachella.org. Transmittal prior to the start of the meeting is required. All written

comments received will be forwarded to the City Council and entered into the record.
o If you wish, you may leave a message at (760) 262-6240 before 5:30 p.m. on the day of the meeting.

The live stream of the meeting may be viewed online by accessing the city's website at

www.coachella.org, and clicking on the "Watch Council Meetings™ tab located on the home page, and then

clicking on the "live" button.



http://www.coachella.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84544257915?pwd=VTdHWitpYVdOUk1NQW8vZ1pqUm0zQT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84544257915?pwd=VTdHWitpYVdOUk1NQW8vZ1pqUm0zQT09
mailto:cityclerk@coachella.org
http://www.coachella.org/

June 5, 2024

CALL To ORDER:

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

RoLL CALL:

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

“At this time the Commission may announce any items being pulled from the agenda or continued to another date
or request the moving of an item on the agenda.”

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES:

1. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes May 1, 2024

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:

PuBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS):

“The public may address the Commission on any item of interest to the public that is not on the agenda, but is
within the subject matter jurisdiction thereof. Please limit your comments to three (3) minutes.”

REPORTS AND REQUESTS:

NON-HEARING ITEMS:

2. Coachella Wireless Telecommunication Facilities Status Update

PuBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL):

3. CUP 375 AR No. 23-14 — Coachella Islamic Center Parking Lot for the construction of a parking lot to serve
the existing building at 84650 Ave 49. Applicant: Islamic Society of Palm Springs.

4. CUP No. 254 (Modification), AR No. 24-02 Coachella Gateway — a modification to add a drive-thru multi-
tenant commercial building within the Coachella Gateway shopping center approved under CUP No. 254 at
the southwest corner of Ave 48 and Grapefruit Boulevard, adjacent to the Dillon Bridge. Applicant: Chandi
& Karan LLC

|

Coachella Sunline Transportation Hub (Architectural Review No 21-13 Modification) for exterior design
modifications to the break room building of the Coachella Sunline Transportation Hub (Transit Hub). The
entire project includes bus service that with a 540 sq. ft. Sunline Transit Agency breakroom/office
building, 5 bus shelters, landscape improvements and a corner focal point for a future public art
installation located at the Southeast corner of Cesar Chavez Street and 4th Street (APN 778-080-

021). Applicant: Sunline Transit Agency.

INFORMATIONAL:

ADJOURNMENT:

Complete Agenda Packets are available for public inspection at the

City Clerk’s Office at 53-462 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California, and on the
City’s website Www.coachella.org.



http://www.coachella.org/

June 5, 2024

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES




June 5, 2024

oL S24Cy,

City Council Chamber
1515 6™ Street, Coachella,
(760) 398-3502 <
www.coachella.org

AGENDA

DE UNA REUNION DE LA

COMISION DE PLANIFICACION
PLANNING COMMISSION

5 de Junio, 2024
6:00 PM

https://us02web.zoom.us/|/84544257915?pwd=VTdHWIitpYVdOUKINQW8vZ1pqUm0zQT09
O one tap mobile:

Us: +16699006833,, 84544257915#,,,,* 380084# US

O teléfono:

Us: +1 669 900 6833

ID del webinar: 845 4425 7915

Cadigo de acceso: 380084

Espafiol: El idioma espafiol esta disponible en Zoom seleccionado la opcidn en la parte de abajo de la pantalla

Los comentarios publicos se pueden recibir por correo electrénico, por teléfono o por zoom con un limite de
250 palabras o tres minutos:

En vivo:

Si participa en vivo a través de zoom o teléfono, durante el periodo de comentarios publicos, use la
funcion "levantar la mano™ en su computadora, 0 cuando use un teléfono, los participantes pueden
levantar la mano presionando *9 en el teclado.

Por escrito:

Los comentarios escritos pueden enviarse a la comision electrénicamente por correo electrénico a
gperez@coachella.org. Se requiere la transmision antes del inicio de la reunién. Todos los comentarios
escritos recibidos seran enviados a la comision e ingresados en el registro.

SI'LO DESEA, PUEDE DEJAR UN MENSAJE EN EL (760) 398-3102, EXTENSION 122, ANTES DE LAS
4:00 P.M. DEL DIA DE LA REUNIO



http://www.coachella.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84544257915?pwd=VTdHWitpYVdOUk1NQW8vZ1pqUm0zQT09
mailto:gperez@coachella.org

June 5, 2024
LLAMADO AL ORDEN:

JURAMENTO A LA BANDERA:

PASE DE LISTA:

APROBACION DE LA

AGENDA:

“En este momento, la Comision puede anunciar cualquier punto que esté siendo retirado de la agenda o
continuado a otra fecha o solicitar el traslado de un punto de la agenda”.

APROBACION DE LAS ACTAS:

1. Borrador de las Actas de la Comision de Planificacion — 17 de Mayo 2024.

COMUNICACIONES ESCRITAS:

COMENTARIOS DEL PUBLICO (PUNTOS QUE NO ESTAN EN LA AGENDA):

“El publico puede dirigirse a la Comision sobre cualquier tema de interés para el publico que no esté en la
agenda, pero que esté dentro de la jurisdiccion de la materia de la misma. Por favor limite sus comentarios a
tres

(3) minutos”.

INFORMES Y SOLICITUDES:

PUNTOS QUE NO SON DE AUDIENCIA:

2. Actualizacion del Estatus de las Instalaciones de Telecomunicaciones Inaldmbricas de Coachella

CALENDARIO DE AUDIENCIAS PUBLICAS (CUASI-JUDICIAL):

3. Entrada de Coachella CUP 254 (MOD) AR n° 24-02. El proyecto es para una modificacion del Permiso
de Uso Condicional (CUP 254) para agregar una entrada de autos a un edificio comercial que fue
aprobado bajo el CUP 254 en la esquina suroeste de Ave 48 y Grapefruit Boulevard, adyacente al Puente
Dillon. El proyecto es para la construccidn propuesta de un edificio comercial de 4,627 pies cuadrados
con 3 inquilinos planeados.  Solicitante: Chandi & Karan LLC

4. AR No. 23-14 CUP 375 Estacionamiento del Centro Isldmico de Coachella para la construccion de un
estacionamiento para servir al edificio existente de la Sociedad Islamica de Coachella de Palm Springs
en 84650 49th Avenue. Solicitante: Sociedad Islamica de Palm Springs

5. AR No. 21-13 (Modificacion) Sunline Transit Hub para modificaciones del disefio exterior del edificio
de la sala de descanso del Coachella Sunline Transportation Hub (Transit Hub). EIl proyecto completo
incluye un servicio de autobus con una sala de descanso/edificio de oficinas de Sunline Transit Agency
de 540 pies cuadrados, 5 paradas de autobus, mejoras paisajisticas y un punto focal en la esquina para
una futura instalacion de arte publico ubicada en la esquina sureste de la calle César Chavez y 4ta. Calle
(APN 778-080-021). Solicitante: Agencia de transito Sunline




Agenda Planning Commission June 05, 2024
Page 6

INFORMATIVO:

SE SUSPENDE LA SESION:

Los paquetes completos de la agenda estan disponibles para inspeccion publica en el
Departamento de Servicios de Desarrollo en 53-990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California, y
en el sitio web de la ciudad www.coachella.org.

ESTA REUNION ES ACCESIBLE PARA PERSONAS CON DISCAPACIDAD



http://www.coachella.org/

Iltem 1.

City Council Chamber
1515 6™ Street, Coachella, CA
(760) 398-3502 ¢ www.coachella.org

MINUTES

OF AREGULAR MEETING
OF THE
CiTY OF COACHELLA

PLANNING COMMISSION

May 1, 2024
6:00 PM

If you would like to attend the meeting via zoom, here is the link:

https://us02web.zoom.us/|/84544257915?pwd=VTdHWIitpYVdOUKINQW8vZ1pqUm0zQT09
Or one tap mobile :

Us: +16699006833,, 84544257915#,,,,* 380084# US

Or telephone:

Us: +1 669 900 6833

Webinar ID: 845 4425 7915

Passcode: 380084

Spanish: El idioma espafiol esta disponible en Zoom seleccionado la opcion en la parte de abajo de la pantalla

Public comments may be received via email, telephonically, or via zoom with a limit of 250 words, or three
minutes:

In real time:

If participating in real time via zoom or phone, during the public comment period, use the “raise hand”
function on your computer, or when using a phone, participants can raise their hand by pressing *9 on
the keypad.

In writing:
Written comments may be submitted to the commission electronically via email to
gperez@coachella.org. Transmittal prior to the start of the meeting is required. All written comments

received will be forwarded to the commission and entered into the record.

IF YOU WISH, YOU MAY LEAVE A MESSAGE AT (760) 398-3102, EXTENSION 122, BEFORE
4:00 P.M. ON THE DAY OF THE MEETING



http://www.coachella.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84544257915?pwd=VTdHWitpYVdOUk1NQW8vZ1pqUm0zQT09
mailto:gperez@coachella.org

Iltem 1.

CALL TOORDER: 6:01PM

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

Commissioner Ramirez.

RoLL CALL:

Commissioners Present: Chair Hernandez, Vice Chair Gonzalez, Commissioner Ramirez, Commissioner
Murillo, Alternate Commissioner Fonseca.

Commissioners Absent: Commissioner Arvizu.

Staff Present: *Gabriel Perez, Development Services Director.

*Adrian Moreno, Associate Planner.
*Rene Rosales, Code Enforcement Manager
*Jesus Medina, Information Technology Technician

APPROVAL OF AGENDA!
“At this time the Commission may announce any items being pulled from the agenda or continued to another date
or request the moving of an item on the agenda.”

IT WAS MOVED BY COMMISSIONER RAMIREZ AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER MURILLO TO
APPROVE THE AGENDA AND CONTINUE ITEMS THREE (3) AND FOUR (4) TO THE NEXT
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING.

Approved by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Commissioner Ramirez, Vice Chair Gonzalez, Chair Hernandez, Commissioner Murillo, Alternate
Commissioner Fonseca.

NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: None.

ABSENT: Commissioner Arvizu.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES:

1. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes — April 17, 2024.

IT WAS MOVED BY VICE CHAIR GONZALEZ AND SECONDED BY ALTERNATE COMMISSIONER
FONSECA TO APPROVE THE MINUTES.

Approved by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Vice Chair Gonzalez, Commissioner Ramirez, Alternate Commissioner Fonseca, Commissioner
Murillo, and Chair Hernandez.

NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: None.

ABSENT: Commissioner Arvizu.

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:

None.




Iltem 1.

PuBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS):

“The public may address the Commission on any item of interest to the public that is not on the agenda, but is
within the subject matter jurisdiction thereof. Please limit your comments to three (3) minutes.”

REPORTS AND REQUESTS:

None.

NON-HEARING ITEMS:

2. Code Enforcement Update - Commercial Centers

Rene Rosales, Code Enforcement Manager, gave a presentation for the item. A copy of the presentation is on file in the
Planning Division.

PuBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL):

3. CUP No. 254 (Modification), AR No. 24-02 Coachella Gateway — a modification to add a drive-thru multi-
tenant commercial building within the Coachella Gateway shopping center approved under CUP No. 254 at
the southwest corner of Ave 48 and Grapefruit Boulevard, adjacent to the Dillon Bridge. Applicant: Chandi
& Karan LLC.

Item continued.

4. CUP 375 AR No. 23-14 — Coachella Islamic Center Parking Lot for the construction of a parking lot to
serve the existing building at 84650 Ave 49. Applicant: Islamic Society of Palm Springs. Recommendation:
Continue to May 15, 2024.

Item continued.

INFORMATIONAL :

Director’s Development Updates
e The City received the Community Resilience Center Implementation grant award from the Strategic

Growth Council and the press conference event will take place on Tuesday, May 7' at the Hidden Harvest
site.

e The City will host a Connect Coachella community engagement workshop event on May 6 at the
Coachella Library.

e Building and Safety Division will be hosting two events in May for Building and Safety Month.

Respectfully Submitted by,

Gabriel Perez
Planning Commission Secretary

ADJOURNMENT: 6:56 PM




Iltem 1.

Complete Agenda Packets are available for public inspection in the
Development Services Department at 53-990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California, and on the
City’s website www.coachella.org.

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

10



http://www.coachella.org/

Iltem 1.

11




STAFF REPORT

6/5/2024
To: Planning Commission Chair and Commissioners
FroOM: Anahi Fernandez, Management Analyst
SUBJECT: Coachella Wireless Telecommunication Facilities Status Update

Item 2.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission receive and file the Coachella wireless
telecommunication facilities compliance update and establish a deadline of 60 days for the
remaining noncompliance providers to comply with their Conditional Use Permit (CUP)
conditions of approval.

Background:

On October 4, 2023, the Planning Commission received a status report of the eleven (11)
operational wireless telecommunication facilities in the City of Coachella. During the October
report, two (2) wireless telecommunication facilities were out of compliance with their CUP
conditions of approval and working towards compliance.

The Planning Commission allowed the provider, American Tower, additional time to address their
landscaping and maintenance issues. For the past seven months, staff has worked with American
Tower to get the two (2) wireless facilities into compliance.

Discussion/Analysis:

On May 21, 2024, staff conducted a subsequent visual survey of the wireless telecommunication
facilities in the City of Coachella and reviewed the condition of the facilities for compliance with
their CUP conditions of approval. A total of four (4) were observed to be out of compliance.

The four (4) wireless facilities out of compliance need to address the following issues:

e Proper landscaping to mitigate the visual effects of the wireless towers
e General cleanup and maintenance

Since the last status report to the Planning Commission on October 2023, two (2) wireless facilities
have remained out of compliance with their CUP conditions of approval (Oats Lane and Dillon
Road). They have not addressed their landscaping requirement. Staff continues to work with the

12




provider to get them into compliance. American Tower submitted a landscape plan to the Planning
Division for the wireless facility on Oats Lane. They are also working with the Utilities Department
to obtain a water meter release. Once they install the water meter, they can install the irrigation
followed by the landscaping. American Tower has yet to submit a landscape plan for the wireless
facility on Dillon Road. There are two anticipated projects for the property on Dillon, a billboard
and a cannabis dispensary, who are also conditioned to install landscaping. American Tower has
been in touch with the property owner and will work with the project applicants on the completion
of the landscaping requirement. The landscaping on the property must be completed by either one
of the three parties. Staff will contact the other two (2) providers who are out of compliance.

A summary of the compliance update for each wireless telecommunication facility is provided in
the table below as well as a detailed table in Attachment 2.

Attachments:

1. Detailed Status of Coachella Wireless Telecommunication Facilities
2. Map of Coachella Wireless Telecommunication Facilities

Item 2.

13




Item 2.

Coachella Wireless Telecommunication Facilities Compliance Update

Conditional Use Address Previous Condition Existing Condition
Permit No.

CUP 179 86-045 Avenue 52 In Compliance In Compliance

CUP 182 86-275 Avenue 50 In Compliance In Compliance

CUP 184 49-600 Oates Lane Landscaping is required Landscaping has not been

around the perimeter of planted around the
the lease. Not in perimeter of the lease.
compliance. Not in compliance.

CUP 192 45-800 Dillon Road Landscaping is required. Landscaping is required. A

Not in compliance. landscape plan has not
been submitted to
Planning. Not in
compliance.

CUP 240 51-335 Harrison Street | In Compliance In Compliance.

(Plaza Tonala)

CUP 243 49-251 Harrison Street | In Compliance. In Compliance

CUP 292 51-711 Douma Street In Compliance In Compliance.

CUP 301 51-711 Douma Street In Compliance In Compliance.

CUP 302 Jackson Square In Compliance. Damage repair and clean
up required. Not in
compliance.

CUP 317 Jackson Square In Compliance. Trash, debris, and litter
cleanup is required.

Not in compliance.

CUP 309 86-351 Avenue 52 In Compliance. In Compliance.

14




Attachment 1

Site 1

Previous Condition T~ Existing Condition

Planning Case no: CUP 179
Approval date: October 13, 1999
Location: 86-045 Avenue 52
Type: Tower

Facility Height: 100’

Status: Consistent with conditions of approval for CUP. Needs general
maintenance. In Compliance.

Last Known Provider: American Tower

Item 2.

15




Attachment 1

Site 2

r‘[”][l_ IRETALD ) 1Yy e A
Ll LA AR TR
b SHERd e

~ o PRGRCRED 15 wRBLE

PROPIRLD & DE ACONRS padise -

PRGRGHLD ARl ACH Caleit

T O |
FIIE Wy 1 TR0y o | i
BARRLD WD i .

b,
il

il

Existing Condition

CUP 182 Exhibit

Planning Case no: CUP 182
Approval date: January 12, 2000
Location: 86-275 Avenue 50
Type: Tower

Facility Height: 150’

Status: Construction is in conformance with the plans submitted and conditions
imposed. In Compliance.

Last Known Provider: Sprint

Item 2.

16




Item 2.

Attachment 1

Previous Condition i Existing Condition

Planning Case no: CUP 184
Approval date: September 06, 2000
Location: 49-600 Oates Lane

Type: Tower

Facility Height: 150’

Status: Condition 15 of amendment to CUP 184 requires landscaping to be
planted and maintained around the perimeter of the lease. No landscaping has
been planted. Planning received provider’s landscape plan and provider is
working with Utilities for a water meter release. Not in Compliance.

Provider: American Tower

17




Item 2.

Attachment 1

Site 4

Previous Condition .’ : Existing Condition

Planning Case no: CUP 192
Approval date: July 17, 2002
Location: 45-800 Dillon Road
Type: Tower

Facility Height: 110’

Status: Condition 12 of CUP requires the installment of appropriate view
obscuring landscaping in conjunction with the chain link fence to establish a
“living fence.” The “living fence” has been replaced. Landscaping needs to be
addressed. Not in Compliance.

Provider: American Tower

18




Site 5

Previous Condition : N . Existing Condition

S [ =
- 4 % L T S

Planning Case no: CUP 240

Approval date: February 03, 2010

Location: 51-335 Harrison Street (Plaza Tonala)

Type: Monopalm

Facility Height: 50’

Status: Monopalm has been maintained. In Compliance.

Provider: Crown Castle

Attachment 1

Item 2.

19




Attachment 1

Site 6

Existing Condition

Planning Case no: CUP 243
Approval date: June 02, 2010
Location: 49-251 Harrison Street
Type: Monopalm

Facility Height: 60’

Status: Two Washingtonia Robusta palm trees with minimum height of 15’ were
required to be planted adjacent to the monopalm wireless tower. Two palm trees
were observed. In Compliance.

Last Known Provider: T-Mobile

Item 2.

20




Attachment 1

Site 7

Existing Condition

Planning Case no: CUP 292
Approval date: January 31, 2018
Location: 51-711 Douma Street
Type: Monopalm

Facility Height: 70’

Status: Two date palm trees of a minimum 20’ to 30’ were required to be planted
near monopalm wireless tower. Two palm trees were observed. In Compliance.

Provider: Verizon Wireless

Item 2.

21




Item 2.

Attachment 1

Planning Case no: CUP 301
Approval date: September 19, 2018
Location: 51-711 Douma Street
Type: Monoeucalyptus

Facility Height: 70’

Status: Two date palm trees were required to be installed at a height of 20’ to 30’
to mitigate adverse visual effects of the mono-eucalyptus wireless tower. Two live
palm trees are present at the site. In Compliance.

Last Known Provider: AT&T

22




Attachment 1

Site 9

Previous Condition Existing Condition

Planning Case no: CUP 302
Approval date: September 19, 2018

Location: Jackson Square (Located on the southeast corner of 48 and Jackson
Street)

Type: Monopalm
Facility Height: 50’

Status: Condition 30 of the Conditional Use Permit requires maintenance, damage
repair and cleanup of the facility. General clean up and water pipe repair needed.
Not in compliance.

Last Known Provider: AT&T

Item 2.

23




Attachment 1 ftem 2.

Site 10

Previous Condition Existing Condition

Planning Case no: CUP 317
Approval date: March 18, 2020

Location: Jackson Square (located on the southeast corner of Avenue 48 and
Jackson Street)

Type: Monopalm
Facility Height: 50’

Status: Two date palm trees were required to be installed at a minimum height of
20’ to 30’ adjacent to monopalm tower. Two date palm trees were observed.
Facility requires cleanup of trash, debris, and litter. Not in compliance.

Last Known Provider: Verizon Wireless

24




Item 2.

Attachment 1

Site 11

Previous Condition

S e S

Planning Case no: CUP 309
Approval date: January 30, 2019
Location: 86-351 Avenue 52
Type: Tower

Facility Height: 200’

Status: Property was once owned by IID, and was purchased by the City in 2009.
In 2019, a Conditional Use Permit for the colocation of six antennas and other
ancillary communication equipment to the existing communication lattice tower
were approved. In Compliance

Last Known Provider: Verizon Wireless

25




. . . epegs Attachment 2
Map of Coachella Wireless Telecommunications Facilities 2024 Item 2.

\ " m— = > ' -
RN S T 1h SN & T G
) ]
: # = 4 4
I ] [l .
il see N LR
ul B — _4% k gt T T
1, i D\ LY af )
- o 4N
.15’ " e S e > .“Vf v - =
i 5 _ s A
| N # " 3
2 sk
., | oL
3 4 F3 .
# 3 : o , “g’ ‘ ‘v s
wl ‘v
' = o S *
oy L] "
4 = ; 4 ks =
= .
< 2" A o 4 | \ I A
P ] " o i i
- ¢ ]
10 4T =
‘ = A\
o \
* Rae) \S
- , AN
— \

|

P T
e
)
£

= = Y N ; % N : ’
s A AN L TR \ = z
g ¢ i I. | \ -\\ ' N 7 - ¥
% > .‘.;‘“‘N X e L e

< : ar? = " ":.7- - R N~ \‘ E:

LR T : i CERAYTE U D \52ND AVE SOURY

;",\“ % = - = . ) e o
- -

3

F 3 el B

-

= - ,"" - s =] ) .l |
: i ‘29 Y "‘? Source E'srl MaxarAGeoEye EaithstapGeogra phieg\G ES/Alrb“g s\DS, USDA, USGS, Aer('a"G‘RIID‘
‘ tectﬂrU_’ry ‘f,. ~' IGN} and {the GIS'User C(?mmunlty e, N T B ) \\ " ‘W



gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2


STAFF REPORT

6/5/2024
To: Planning Commission Chair and Commissioners
FrOM: Adrian Moreno, Associate Planner

SUBJECT: CUP 375 AR No. 23-14 — Coachella Islamic Center Parking Lot for the

Item 3.

construction of a parking lot to serve the existing building at 84650 Ave 49.

Applicant: Islamic Society of Palm Springs.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt Resolution No. PC2024-07 adopting
Conditional Use Permit No. 375 and Architectural Review No. 23-14 for the construction of a
parking lot to serve the existing building at 84650 Ave 49 (APN: 603-250-015).

BACKGROUND:

On December 21, 2016 the Planning Commission approved
CUP No. 275 and AR No. 16-14 for the approval of a new
mosque expansion and assembly hall that included a parking
lot. On February 5, 2020 the Planning Commission approved
(3) retro-active 12-month time extensions (36 months) that
provided a final expiration date of December 21, 2020. The
applicant had not diligently pursued construction of the original
project, and has thus expired. On September 27, 2023, the
applicant submitted for the construction of a parking lot to serve
the existing mosque at 84650 Ave 49.

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS:

The surrounding land uses and zoning designations are as
follows:

North: Vacant Land (C-G, General Commercial).

South: Pueblo De La Paz single family subdivision (S-N Suburban Nelghborhood)
East:  Aztec Landscaping (C-N Commercial Neighborhood)
West: two single family dwellings and the Pentecostal Church of Philadelphia (C-N

Commercial Neighborhood).

27




SITE PLAN

The exhibit below illustrated the proposed plan layout for the (138) space asphalt parking lot for
the existing 3,200 SF mosque. There are two points of access from Ave 49, and there is an existing
block wall and fence that surrounds the property from all sides. The applicant proposes six light
posts for on-site parking lot lighting, one of which is proposed adjacent to the Avenue 49 landscape
common area.

%,;J|_|||li:r|||r||n S |

i

Figure 1 - Site Plan

There is one existing eastern driveway Avenue 49, and the proposed project plans for a new
western driveway access point on Avenue 49 for a total of two points of access for the site.
Currently there is an existing 6 foot height block wall on the western half of the property that
blocks visibility along Avenue 49 for the proposed parking lot, however the eastern half provides
an existing wrought iron fence that provides visibility to the site along Avenue 49. There is an
existing wrough-iron rolling gate at the existing driveway, and at this time the applicant has not
proposed any new fence for the new proposed western driveway. Any future plans for fencing
would be required to submit a building permit application to be reviewed and approved by Staff.

Figure 2 - Existing Fencing Eastern and Western Entrances

Item 3.

28




PARKING

The existing mosque has an assembly area of 2,420 square feet which requires a minimum of 115
parking spaces. The applicant proposes 138 parking spaces which is 23 spaces more than the
minimum requirement for the existing use. The proposed parking lot provides sufficient parking
for the existing use. In 2016, Planning Commission did approve the same parking lot with a
proposed building expansion and the Planning Commission found that the parking lot did provide
sufficient parking for the building expansion at that time. In the future, if the applicant proposes a
building expansion and staff makes the finding that there is not sufficient parking for that
expansion, a variance or the implementation of a parking mitigation plan may be required.

LANDSCAPING

The project is required to provide landscaping and sidewalk along the entire property frontage
along Avenue 49 at the southern portion of the property. A final landscape plan is required to be
submitted and approved by the Development Services Director. The landscape common area and
on-site landscape design is required to provide shade trees, % inch gravel and a diversity of shrubs
including flowering varieties. The landscape common area is required to provide separate
sidewalk, and the on-site parking lot shall provide shade trees at the northwest corner of the site.
The applicant may provide an alternative to the requirements imposed for the landscaping plan
that ensures a high quality design to be approved to the satisfaction of the Development Services
Director. The applicant shall enter into a Landscape Maintenance Agreement with the city.

Z.ONING CONSISTENCY

The project site is located at parcel APN: 603-250-015 which is located in the C-N Commercial
Neighborhood zoning designation. The project is for a “parking lot” which is permitted within the
C-N zone under a conditional use permit. The C-N zone allows for “commercial parking lots” and
“those uses allowed as conditional uses by Section 17.12.020(C) of the S-N (Suburban
Neighborhood) zone”. The S-N Suburban Neighborhood zone allows for “public and quasi-public
uses of an educational or religious type, including... churches, parsonages, and other religious
institutions”. The project, a parking lot to serve an existing mosque building for religious use, is
consistent with the C-N Neighborhood Commercial zoning designation with approval of a
conditional use permit.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:

The Planning Division has determined that the proposed project is categorically exempt from
environmental review pursuant to the guidelines of the California Environmental Quality Act as
“Accessory Structures” (CEQA Guidelines, Section 15311), as the project consists of the new
construction of a parking lot to be accessory to an existing use.

Item 3.

29




ALTERNATIVES

1) Adopt Resolution No. PC2024-07 approving Conditional Use Permit No. 375 and
Architectural Review No. 23-14 with the findings and conditions as recommended by
Staff.

2) Adopt Resolution No. PC2024-07 with the findings and conditions as recommended by
Staff with modifications as proposed by the Planning Commission.

3) Not approve Resolution No. PC 2024-07 and request that staff prepare a Planning
Commission Resolution for denial of Conditional Use Permit No. 375 and Architectural
Review No. 23-14.

3) Continue this item and provide staff and the applicant with direction.

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Based on the analysis contained herein and the findings listed below, staff is recommending that
the Planning Commission adopt Resolution No. PC2024-07 approving Conditional Use Permit
No. 375 and Architectural Review No. 23-14 with the findings and conditions as recommended by
staff for the construction of a parking lot to serve the existing building at 84650 Ave 49.

Attachments:
1. Resolution PC2024-07
a. Exhibit A — Conditions of Approval
b. Exhibit B — Development Plan Set
Conceptual Landscape Plan
Lighting Plan
Vicinity Map
Site Photos
Outside Agency Comments

o Uk wWwN

Item 3.

30




ATTACHMENT 1 Item 3.

RESOLUTION NO. PC 2024-07

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE
PERMIT  AND  ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW FOR THE
CONSTRUCTION OF A PARKING LOT TO SERVE THE EXISTING
BUILDING AT 84650 AVENUE 49. APPLICANT: ISLAMIC SOCIETY
OF PALM SPRINGS

WHEREAS, Islamic Society of Palm Springs filed an application for Conditional
Use Permit No. 375 and Architectural Review No. 23-14 for the construction of a parking
lot to serve the existing mosque religious building at 84650 Avenue 49 (APN: 603-250-
015); and,

WHEREAS, on June 5, 2024, the Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed
public hearing on the proposed project in the subject application, considered written and
oral comments, and facts and evidence presented by the applicant, City staff, and other
interested parties; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant and members of the public were present and were
afforded an opportunity to testify regarding the Project; and,

WHEREAS, the proposed use is necessary or desirable for the development of the
community, is consistent with the objectives of the City’s General Plan, and is not
detrimental to the existing uses or the uses specifically permitted in the zone in which the
proposed use is to be located; and,

WHEREAS, the proposed site is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the
proposed development; and,

WHEREAS, the site for the proposed use relates properly to streets which are
designed to carry the type and quantity of traffic to be generated by the proposed use; and,

WHEREAS, the proposed project is exempt from the California Environmental
Quality Act, as amended; and,

WHEREAS, the conditions of approval as stipulated by the City are necessary to
protect the public health, safety and welfare of the community.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF
THE CITY OF COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA DOES HEREBY FIND
DETERMINE AND RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated
herein as findings of fact.

SECTION 2. CEQA Findings.

Resolution No. PC2024-07
Page 1

31




ATTACHMENT 1

Based upon its review of the entire record, including the Staff Report, any public
comments or testimony presented to the Planning Commission, and the facts outlined
below, the Planning Commission hereby finds and determines that the proposed project
is categorically exempt from environmental review pursuant to the guidelines of the
California Environmental Quality Act as “Accessory Structures” (CEQA Guidelines,
Section 15311), as the project consists of the new construction of a parking lot to be
accessory to an existing use.

SECTION 3. Architectural Review Findings

With respect to Conditional Use Permit No. 375 and Architectural Review No. 23-14, the
Planning Commission finds as follows for the proposed construction of a parking lot to serve
the existing mosque religious building at 84650 Avenue 49.

1. The proposed architectural review and conditional use permit are consistent with the
General Plan and the City of Coachella Official Zoning Map governing the site. The
subject site is a 2.38-acre site with adequate access and lot dimensions to allow for the
parking lot development in a manner consistent with the Neighborhood Center land use
designation of the General Plan and Neighborhood Commercial Zoning Designation.

2. The proposed use will be located, designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as
to be compatible with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and shall
not change the essential character of the same area. The proposed construction of a
parking lot to serve the existing mosque religious building at 84650 Avenue 49 would be
located in the Neighborhood Commercial area and is compatible with existing adjacent
uses that are similar land uses.

3. Consideration was given to harmony in scale, bulk, coverage and density, to the
availability of public facilities and utilities, to harmful effect, in any, upon desirable
neighborhood character, to the generation of traffic and the capacity of surrounding
streets, and to any other relevant impact of the development. The proposed project use is
a compatible use with existing similar uses in the area.

4. Where the proposed use may be potentially hazardous or disturbing to existing or
reasonable expected neighboring uses, it must be justified by the common public interest
as a benefit to the community as a whole. The Development Services Department does
not anticipate any potentially hazardous or disturbing impacts on existing or neighboring
uses. The proposed construction of a parking lot to serve the existing mosque religious
building at 84650 Avenue 49 is anticipated to limit the negative transportation impacts of
overflow parking from the existing use and is anticipated to limit the dust impacts from
the site which works towards the City’s long-term goals and policies to promote a physical
environment that support’s residential health as envision by the City of Coachella General
Plan.

SECTION 4. Location and Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings are based are located at

Resolution No. PC2024-07
Page 2

Item 3.

32




ATTACHMENT 1 Item 3.

Coachella Civic Center. The Development Services Director is the custodian of the record
of proceedings.

SECTION 5. Execution of Resolution. The Chairman shall sign this Resolution and the
City Clerk shall attest and certify to the passage and adoption thereof.

SECTION 6. Planning Commission Approval Based on the foregoing recitals and
findings above, and the written and oral comments, facts and evidence presented, the City
of Coachella Planning Commission hereby approves Conditional Use Permit No. 375 and
Architectural Review No. 23-14 for the construction of a parking lot to serve the existing
mosque religious building at 84650 Avenue 49 (APN: 603-250-015) subject to the
Conditions of Approval as set forth in “Exhibit A” and the plans set forth in “Exhibit B”.

Resolution No. PC2024-07
Page 3

33




PASSED APPROVED and ADOPTED this 5th day of June 2024.

Jason Hernandez, Chairperson
Coachella Planning Commission

ATTEST:

Gabriel Perez
Planning Commission Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carlos Campos
City Attorney

ATTACHMENT 1

Resolution No. PC2024-07
Page 4

Item 3.

34




ATTACHMENT 1

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. PC-2024-07, was
duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of
Coachella, California, held on the 5 day of June 2024, by the following roll call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Gabriel Perez
Planning Commission Secretary

Resolution No. PC2024-07
Page 5

Item 3.

35




Resolution No. PC2024-07 EXHIBIT A

Exhibit A — Resolution No. PC2024-07

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 375 and ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW NO. 23-14
Coachella Islamic Center Parking Lot

General Conditions

1.

CUP 375 and AR 23-14 are approved for the construction of a parking lot to serve the existing
mosque religious building at 84650 Avenue 49 (APN: 603-250-015).

The applicant shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of Coachella, its officials,
officers, employees, and agents from and against any claim, action, or proceeding against the
City, its officials, officers, employees or agents to attack, set aside, void or annul any project
approval or condition of approval of the city concerning this project, including but not limited
to any approval or condition of approval or mitigation measure imposed by the City Council
or Planning Commission. The City shall promptly notify the applicant of any claim, action, or
proceeding concerning the project and the City shall cooperate fully in the defense of the
matter. The City reserves the right, at its own option, to choose its own attorney to represent
the City, its officials, officers, employees and agents in the defense of the City Attorney, within
five days of the effective date of this approval.

The working drawings shall include within the first four pages a list of all conditions of
approval included in this resolution.

All plan submittals are the responsibility of the developer; this includes plan submittals to the
City of Coachella, the Riverside County Fire Department or to other agencies for whom plan
review and approval is required.

Applicant shall submit to the Riverside County Fire Department all plans that are required to
be approved by the Fire Department, which may also include the landscape plan for the project.
Applicant shall provide Staff with written confirmation from Fire Department if landscape
plan approval from their department is or is not required by Fire Department.

All plan submittals shall have consistent and identical details of site work installations.

A detailed landscape, lighting, and irrigation plan shall be submitted and approved by the
Development Services Director prior to building permit issuance that addresses landscape
requirements for the project site. Applicant shall also coordinate with Utilities Department for
approval of landscape plan. The applicant may provide an alternative to the requirements for
the landscape, lighting, and irrigation plan that ensures a high quality design to be approved to
the satisfaction and discretion of the Development Services Director. Applicant shall provide
lighting to ensure parking lot safety to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

Applicant shall provide sidewalk, % inch gravel, shade trees, and a diversity of shrubs and
flowering varieties along landscape common area frontage along Avenue 49. Applicant shall
design landscape common area with a 4 foot parkway, 6 foot sidewalk, and additional 4 foot
landscape area to provide a separated sidewalk design. The applicant may propose a high
quality alternative design to be approved to the satisfaction of the Development Services

Item 3.

36




Resolution No. PC2024-07 EXHIBIT A

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Director and City Engineer. Landscape common area shall be installed prior to parking lot
striping or other benchmark determined by the Development Services Director prior to permit
final.

Landscaping within the parking lot shall include % inch gravel, a diversity of shrubs and
flowering varieties, vines along trash enclosure, and shade trees. Shade Trees shall be planted
along northeastern edge of proposed parking lot to ensure shade coverage for parking spaces
and to obscure undeveloped area in the northeastern portion of the property to the satisfaction
of the Development Services Director.

Landscape medians adjacent to parking space shall provide concrete step to ensure persons
existing their vehicles don’t damage landscaping.

Prior to building permit issuance, applicant shall submit trash enclosure plans and elevations.

A detailed fence plan shall be submitted to address any proposed fencing alterations on site
frontage. Prior to issuance of building permits, a fence plan shall be submitted and approved
by the Development Services Director or his/her designee.

The proposed entry driveways along Avenue 49 shall incorporate decorative paving such as
scored colored concrete, decorative pavers, or similar treatment, for the full width of the
driveway and a minimum depth of 20 feet.

The site landscaping shall be maintained in good condition at all times, and the owner or
operator of the facility shall be responsible for replacing any damaged, dead or decayed
landscaping as soon as practicable and in accordance with the approved landscape plan.

Any on-site events that result in overflow parking off the premises, or large gatherings where
200 or more persons are expected to be part of the special event or temporary street closures,
be reviewed through the City’s Special Event Permit procedure.

Any observed parking overflow above capacity by the City Engineer or Development Services
Director shall require implementation of parking mitigation plan as required by the City
Engineer or Development Services Director. Failure to mitigate overflow parking as required
by the City Engineer or Development Services Director shall result in CUP revocation by the
Planning Commission.

Prior to building permit issuance, Applicant shall enter into a Landscape Maintenance
Agreement with the City of Coachella.

Missing offsite improvements shall be installed at the satisfaction of the City Engineer.
The owner will be required to consult with the Utilities Manager and Environmental Programs

Coordinator regarding any water and sewer connections, and utility connection impact fees,
and any proposed sewer dump connections.

Item 3.

37




Resolution No. PC2024-07 EXHIBIT A

Building

20. Handicap accessible parking spaces shall be located on the shortest accessible route from
parking spaces to and accessible building entrance. CBC 11B208.3.1-General

21. Provide shade trees to cover 50% of the parking area within 15 years. CGBSC-5.106.12 Shade
Trees.

22. Handicap spaces shall be located nearest to the building entrances.
23. Provide bicycle parking, 5% of vehicle parking spaces. CGBSC 5.106.4.1-Bicycle parking.

24. It is advisable but not required to install conduit with pull boxes for future electrical vehicle
charging. CGBSC-5.106.5.3 Electrical Vehicle charging.

25. Waste bins shall be on an accessible path of travel. CBC 11B206.2.2

26. Complete an accessibility worksheet, 20% of the projects valuation shall be dedicated to
accessibility improvements. CBC 11B-202.4

Utilities
27. All stormwater runoff must be contained within the property.

28. Submit landscaping plans to Utilities for approval for ensuring landscape does not interfere
with water lines and sewer.

29. Water valves lids and covers must be finish to grade after paving. Lid to say “WATER”. All
valves must be “workable” at all times.

30. Backflows required on all nonresidential meters.

31. Additional requirements subject to water and sewer plan checking process.

Engineering
PRIOR TO APPROVAL OF ENGINEERING PLANS or ISSUANCE OF ENGINEERING

Item 3.

PERMITS:

GENERAL:

32. All proposed development shall conform to the approved engineering studies and
environmental migration measures as identified in the approved traffic, drainage, soils,
hydrology, etc. studies developed under the tentative and final map process.

33. A storm water quality management plan shall be prepared for the project by California
Registered Civil Engineer in compliance with NPDES and State Water Quality Control Board
regulations. The project shall be designed to specify preferential use of Low Impact
Development Best Management Practices that reduce pollutants and runoff volume.

38




Resolution No. PC2024-07 EXHIBIT A

34.

35.

36.

37.

Applicant shall comply with the valley wide NPDES permit requirements including but not
limited to submittal of a WQMP for plan review accompanied by a $3,000 plan check deposit
for approval including executed maintenance agreement. All unused plan check fees will be
refunded to the applicant upon approval of the Final WQMP.

The developer shall submit a Fugitive Dust Control and Erosion Control plan in accordance
with Guidelines set forth by CMC and SCAQMD to maintain wind and drainage erosion and
dust control for all areas disturbed by grading. Exact method(s) of such control shall be subject
to review and approval by the City Engineer. No sediment is to leave the site. Additional
securities, in bond form, in amount of $2,000.00 per acre of gross area, and a one-time cash
deposit of $2,000.00 are required to insure compliance with this requirement. No work may
be started on or off site unless the PM-10 plan has been approved, the original plans, and
executed dust control agreement, are filed in the engineering department at the City of
Coachella.

Site access improvements shall be in conformance with the requirements of Title 24 of the
California Administrative Code. This shall include access ramps for off-site and on-site streets
as required.

The applicant shall pay all necessary plan check, permit and inspection fees. Fees will be
determined when plans are submitted to the City Engineering Department for plan check.

ROUGH GRADING:

38.

39.

40.

Prepare and submit rough grading and erosion control plans for the project.
The project’s soils engineer shall certify to the adequacy of the grading plan.

All projects developing one (1) acre or more of total land area, or which are part of a larger
phased development that will disturb one acre of land, are required to obtain coverage under
the State Water Resources Control Board’s (SWRCB) General Permit for storm water
discharges associated with construction activity. Proof of filing a Notice of Intent (NOI) with
the SWRCB for coverage under this permit is required. The Waste Discharger’s Identification
Number (WDID), issued by the SWRCB, must be shown on the grading plans. The project’s
Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan shall be submitted for the City’s review and approval.

PRECISE GRADING:

41.

42.

A precise grading/improvement plan, prepared by a California Registered Civil Engineer,
showing building footprints, pad elevations, finished grades, drainage routes, retaining walls,
erosion control, slope easements, and all other pertinent information shall be submitted for
review and approval by the City Engineer.

Rough grading shall be certified by the project soils engineer prior to issuance of a permit for
precise grading or building construction.

Item 3.

39




Resolution No. PC2024-07 EXHIBIT A

43. Provide and record a reciprocal use and maintenance agreement to assure common ingress and
egress and joint maintenance of all common access, parking areas and drives.

44. If applicant is planning to build a wall, separate permits shall be required for wall construction.
The maximum height of any wall shall be limited to six (6) feet as measured from an average
of the ground elevations on either side.

STREET IMPROVEMENTS:

45. Applicant shall complete off-site frontage improvements and/or Street repairs such as, but not
limited to; any uncompleted street trench at 49th avenue and Las Cruces Street and Sewer
Manhole adjustments, sidewalks, landscaping, lighting, irrigation, etc., to the satisfaction of
the City Engineer

Waste & Recycling

46. Once construction is scheduled to begin, applicant shall have the construction company reach
out to the District Environmental Coordinator at Burrtec for a Diversion Plan and scheduling
of equipment. Applicant shall provide the city confirmation from Burrtec this item was
complete to the satisfaction of Burrtec.

Fire

47. Prior to issuance of a final permit, the Fire Department shall perform all fire final inspections
on all related fi